MJARDIN GROUP

MJARDIN GROUP, INC.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

to be held on June 30, 2021

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MJARDIN

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT that the annual meeting (the "Meeting") of the shareholders ("Shareholders") of MJardin Group, Inc. ("MJardin" or the "Company") will be held on June 30, 2021 at 10:30 a.m. (Toronto time). In light of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease (known as "COVID-19") and to mitigate against its risks, the Meeting will be held in a virtual-only format at web.lumiagm.com/211875806. Shareholders will not be able to attend the meeting physically.

The Meeting will be held for the following purposes:

- 1. to receive the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020, together with the report of the auditors thereon;
- 2. to elect the directors of the Company who will serve until the next annual meeting of Shareholders of the Company;
- 3. to appoint MNP LLP as the auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorize the directors to fix their remuneration; and
- 4. to transact such further or other business as may properly come before the Meeting and any adjournments or postponements thereof.

The specific details of the foregoing matters to be put before the meeting are set forth in the management information circular accompanying this notice of meeting (the "Circular").

Virtual Meeting

MJardin has been carefully monitoring the outbreak of COVID-19. Given the unprecedented circumstances in which we collectively find ourselves, and in light of the Company's unwavering commitment to the health and well-being of its employees, customers, suppliers, partners, Shareholders, communities and other stakeholders, MJardin will be conducting this year's meeting in a virtual-only format. A virtual-only meeting format is being adopted in response to the evolving COVID-19 situation to enfranchise and give all of our Shareholders an equal opportunity to participate at the meeting and engage with directors of the Company and management as well as other Shareholders regardless of their geographic location or the particular constraints, circumstances or risks they may be facing as a result of COVID-19.



Notice-and-Access

The Company has adopted the "notice-and-access" mechanism of delivering materials to both registered and non-registered Shareholders in connection with the Meeting. As such, the Company has posted electronic copies of this notice of meeting, the Circular and the Company's annual financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2020 and related management's discussion and analysis (collectively, the "Meeting Materials") on the Company's website at https://investors.mjardin.com/resources/annual-general-meeting/default.aspx and on the Company's profile on the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval ("SEDAR") at www.sedar.com, instead of printing and mailing out paper copies, as permitted by Canadian securities regulators. Notice-and-access allows issuers to post electronic versions of proxy-related materials online via SEDAR and one other website, rather than mailing paper copies of such materials to Shareholders.

Shareholders with questions about notice-and-access can call the Company's transfer agent, Odyssey Trust Company (Canada) ("**Odyssey**"), toll free at 1.833-394-7716 (1.833-361-5163 if outside Canada and the US).

How to Obtain Paper Copies of the Meeting Materials

All Shareholders may request that a paper copy of the Meeting Materials be sent to them at no cost. Prior to the Meeting, requests may be made by contacting Odyssey toll free at 1.833-394-7716 (1.833-361-5163 if outside Canada and the US). Requests may be made up to one year from the date the Meeting Materials were filed on SEDAR. To obtain paper copies of the Meeting Materials after the Meeting, please contact the Company by calling 416.309.2077, or sending an email to Ali.Mahdavi@MJardin.com. A paper copy of the Meeting Materials will be mailed to you within three business days of receiving your request, if the request is made at any time prior to the Meeting. We estimate that your request for Meeting Materials will need to be received on or before June 16, 2021 in order to receive your paper copies in advance of the deadline for submission of forms of proxy and/or voting instruction forms in respect of the Meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS ARE REMINDED TO REVIEW THE MEETING MATERIALS PRIOR TO VOTING AS THE MEETING MATERIALS HAVE BEEN PREPARED TO HELP YOU MAKE AN INFORMED DECISION.

How to Vote

Whether or not they are able to attend the Meeting, registered Shareholders are requested to complete, date and sign the enclosed form of proxy and send it in the enclosed envelope or otherwise to the Secretary of the Company c/o Odyssey Trust Company, 1230, 300 5th Ave SW, Calgary, AB, T2P 3C4 (the mailing address for Odyssey Trust Company).

Non-registered Shareholders who receive these materials through their broker or other intermediary should follow the instructions on the document provided by their broker or other intermediary in order to ensure their shares are voted at the Meeting. To be effective, a proxy must be received by Odyssey or the Secretary of the Company not later than June 28, 2021 at 10:30 a.m. (Toronto time), or in the case of any adjournment or postponement of the Meeting, not less than 48 hours, Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excepted, prior to the time of the adjourned or postponed Meeting.

A Shareholder who wishes to appoint a person other than the management nominees identified on the form of proxy or voting instruction form, to represent him, her or it at the Meeting may do so by inserting such person's name in the blank space provided in the form of proxy or voting instruction form and following the instructions for submitting such form of proxy or voting instruction form. This must be completed prior to registering such proxyholder, which is an additional step to be completed after you have submitted your form of proxy or voting instruction form. If you wish that a person other than the management nominees identified on the form of proxy or voting instruction form attend and participate at the Meeting as your proxy and vote your Shares, including if you are a non-registered Shareholder and wish to appoint yourself as proxyholder to attend, participate and vote at the Meeting, you MUST register such proxyholder after having submitted your form of proxy or voting instruction form identifying such proxyholder. Failure to register the proxyholder will result in the proxyholder not receiving a Username to participate



in the Meeting. Without a Username, proxyholders will not be able to attend, participate or vote at the Meeting. To register a proxyholder, Shareholders MUST send an email to MJAR@odysseytrust.com and provide Odyssey Trust Company ("Odyssey") with their proxyholder's contact information, amount of shares appointed, name in which the shares are registered if they are a registered Shareholder, or name of broker where the shares are held if a beneficial Shareholder, so that Odyssey may provide the proxyholder with a Username via email.

At the virtual Meeting, registered Shareholders, non-registered (or beneficial) Shareholders, and their duly appointed proxyholders will be able to watch the live webcast of the meeting, submit questions online and vote in "real time" through an online portal. Non-registered (or beneficial) Shareholders must carefully follow the procedures set out in the Circular in order to be eligible to vote virtually and submit questions through the live webcast. Non-registered (or beneficial) Shareholders who do not follow the procedures set out in the Circular will nonetheless be able to view the live webcast of the Meeting as a guest but will not be able to submit questions or vote.

Your vote is important. As a Shareholder, it is very important that you read this material carefully and then vote your shares of MJardin. You are eligible to vote your shares if you were a Shareholder of record of the Corporation at the close of business on May 14, 2021. You may vote virtually or by proxy. Regardless, we encourage you to vote by proxy. Our goal is to secure as large a representation as possible of Shareholders at the Meeting. You may vote by proxy in any of the ways noted in the Circular and in your form of proxy or voting instruction form.

In order to submit questions and/or vote at the meeting, registered Shareholders must have a valid 12-digit control number and proxyholders must have received an email from Odyssey containing a username. See page 9 for further instructions on how you can access and participate at the virtual-only meeting.

DATED at Toronto, Ontario this 26th day of May 2021.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
 "Adrian Montgomery"
 Adrian Montgomery
Chairman



TABLE OF CONTENTS

GENERAL PROXY INFORMATION	5
Purpose of Solicitation	5
Why MJardin is holding a Virtual-Only Meeting	5
Who Can Attend and Vote at the Meeting	5
Registered or Non-Registered Shareholder	5
Voting by Proxy or in Advance	6
Deadline for Proxies	7
Revocation of Proxies	7
Attending and Participating at the Meeting	8
How MJardin Shares Will Be Voted	9
Notice-and-Access	9
INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS OR COMPANIES IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON	10
VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF	10
MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON AT THE MEETING	11
Financial Statements	11
Election of Directors	11
Appointment of Auditors	13
STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	13
Approach to Executive Compensation	14
Director and Named Executive Officer Compensation, Excluding Compensation Securities	15
Stock Options and Other Compensation Securities	17
Equity Incentive Plan	20
Employment, Consulting and Management Agreements	21
Pension Plan Disclosure	23
SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS	24
INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	24
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE	24
INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS	24
SCHEDULE "A": STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNACE PRACTICES	28
Appendix 1 of Schedule "A"	30

MJARDIN GROUP, INC.

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CIRCULAR

GENERAL PROXY INFORMATION

Purpose of Solicitation

This management information circular ("Circular") is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by management of MJardin Group, Inc. ("MJardin" or the "Company") for use at the annual and special meeting (the "Meeting") of the holders ("Shareholders") of common shares ("Common Shares") and class A proportionate voting shares (the "Class A Shares" and together with the Common Shares, the "MJardin Shares") of the Company. The Meeting will be held in a virtual-only format this year, which will be conducted via live webcast online at web.lumiagm.com/211875806. You will not be able to attend the Meeting physically. The information contained herein is given as of May 26, 2021 unless indicated otherwise.

Shareholders are directed to read this Circular and the other Meeting Materials (defined below) carefully and in full in evaluating the matters for consideration at the Meeting. This Circular gives Shareholders important information about the Company and the matters to be dealt with at the Meeting. All currency amounts referred to in this Circular are expressed in Canadian dollars unless indicated otherwise.

Why MJardin is holding a Virtual-Only Meeting

MJardin has been carefully monitoring the outbreak of COVID-19. Given the unprecedented circumstances in which we collectively find ourselves, and in light of the Company's unwavering commitment to the health and well-being of its employees, customers, suppliers, partners, Shareholders, communities and other stakeholders, MJardin will be conducting the Meeting in a virtual-only format. A virtual-only meeting format is being adopted in response to the rapidly evolving COVID-19 situation to enfranchise and give all of our Shareholders an equal opportunity to participate at the Meeting regardless of their geographic location or the particular constraints, circumstances or risks they may be facing as a result of COVID-19.

Who Can Attend and Vote at the Meeting

Each holder of MJardin Shares as of May 14, 2021, which is the record date for the Meeting, or who has been appointed proxyholder by such Shareholder is entitled to attend the Meeting online and is entitled to vote on all resolutions put forth at the Meeting (including the right to vote on the election of directors of the Company). The costs incurred in the preparation and mailing of this Circular and related materials will be borne by MJardin. Shareholders are encouraged to vote in advance of the Meeting at https://login.odysseytrust.com/pxlogin or as described under the heading "Voting by Proxy or in Advance" below.

Registered or Non-Registered Shareholder

Each holder of MJardin Shares will be either a registered Shareholder or non-registered Shareholder. Registered Shareholders are those that are listed on the shareholder register of the Company. Generally, registered Shareholders are those with a share certificate registered in his or her name. However, in many cases, MJardin Shares beneficially owned by a person (a "Non-Registered Holder") are registered in the name of an intermediary (an "Intermediary") (Intermediaries include banks, trust companies, securities dealers or brokers, and trustees or administrators of self-administered RRSPs, RRIFs, RESPs and similar plans).

The voting process is different depending on whether you are a registered Shareholder or Non-Registered Holder. You may vote virtually at the Meeting or by proxy or voting instruction form, as the case may be, delivered in advance of the Meeting in accordance with the instructions below. **Regardless, we encourage you to vote by proxy. Our goal is to secure as large a representation as possible of Shareholders at the Meeting.**

Registered Shareholders may vote at the Meeting by completing a ballot online during the Meeting, as further described below. See "Attending and Participating at the Meeting".

Non-Registered Holders who have not duly appointed themselves as proxyholder will not be able to attend, submit questions or vote at the Meeting. This is because the Company and its transfer agent do not have a record of the Non-Registered Holders of the Company, and, as a result, will have no knowledge of your shareholdings or entitlement to vote, unless you appoint yourself as proxyholder. If you are a Non-Registered Holder and wish to vote at the Meeting, you have to appoint yourself as proxyholder, by inserting your own name in the space provided on the voting instruction form sent to you and must follow all of the applicable instructions provided by your intermediary. See "Appointment of a Third Party as Proxy" and "Attending and Participating at the Meeting".

Voting by Proxy or in Advance

Appointment of a Third Party as Proxy

The Corporation has designated the directors and/or officers named in the form of proxy to represent Shareholders at the Meeting. Each Shareholder has the right to appoint as proxyholder a person or company (who need not be a shareholder of the Corporation) other than the persons designated by management of the Corporation in the enclosed form of proxy to attend and act on the shareholder's behalf at the Meeting or at any adjournment or postponement of the Meeting.

The persons named in the enclosed proxy will have discretionary authority with respect to any amendments or variations of the matters of business to be acted on at the meeting or any other matters properly brought before the meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof, in each instance, to the extent permitted by law, whether or not the amendment, variation or other matter that comes before the meeting is routine and whether or not the amendment, variation or other matter that comes before the meeting is contested.

Shareholders who wish to appoint a third-party proxyholder to attend, submit questions or vote at the Meeting as their proxy and vote their Shares MUST submit their proxy or voting instruction form (as applicable) appointing such third-party proxyholder AND register the third party proxyholder, as described below. Registering your proxyholder is an additional step to be completed AFTER you have submitted your proxy or voting instruction form. Failure to register the proxyholder will result in the proxyholder not receiving a Username to attend, submit questions or vote at the Meeting.

- Step 1: Submit your proxy or voting instruction form: To appoint a third-party proxyholder, insert such person's name in the blank space provided in the form of proxy or voting instruction form (if permitted) and follow the instructions for submitting such form of proxy or voting instruction form. This must be completed prior to registering such proxyholder, which is an additional step to be completed once you have submitted your form of proxy or voting instruction form. If you are a beneficial Shareholder located in the United States, you must also provide Odyssey with a duly completed legal proxy if you wish to attend, submit questions or vote at the Meeting or, if permitted, appoint a third party as your proxyholder. See below under this section for additional details.
- Step 2: Register your proxyholder: To register a proxyholder, Shareholders MUST send an email to MJAR@odysseytrust.com by no later than 10:30 a.m. (Toronto time) on June 28, 2021 and provide Odyssey with the required proxyholder contact information, amount of shares appointed, name in which the shares are registered if they are a registered Shareholder, or name of broker where the shares are held if a beneficial Shareholder, so that Odyssey may provide the proxyholder with a Username via email. Without a Username, proxyholders will not be able to attend, submit questions or vote at the Meeting.

If you are a Non-Registered Holder and wish to attend, submit questions or vote at the Meeting, you have to insert your own name in the space provided on the voting instruction form sent to you by your intermediary, follow all of the applicable instructions provided by your intermediary AND register yourself as your proxyholder, as described above. By doing so, you are instructing your intermediary to appoint you as proxyholder. It is important that you



comply with the signature and return instructions provided by your intermediary. Please also see further instructions below under the heading "Attending and Participating at the Meeting".

Legal Proxy – US Beneficial Shareholders

If you are a Non-Registered Holder located in the United States and wish to attend, submit questions or vote at the Meeting or, if permitted, appoint a third party as your proxyholder, in addition to the steps described above and below under "Attending and Participating at the Meeting", you must obtain a valid legal proxy from your intermediary. Follow the instructions from your intermediary included with the legal proxy form and the voting information form sent to you or contact your intermediary to request a legal proxy form or a legal proxy if you have not received one. After obtaining a valid legal proxy from your intermediary, you must then submit such legal proxy to Odyssey. Requests for registration from Non-Registered Holders located in the United States that wish to attend, submit questions or vote at the Meeting or, if permitted, appoint a third party as their proxyholder must be sent by e-mail to MJAR@odysseytrust.com and received by 10:30 a.m. (Toronto time) on June 28, 2021.

Deadline for Proxies

Registered Shareholders should send the completed, dated and signed form of proxy to the Secretary of the Company, c/o Odyssey at 1230 300 5th Ave SW, Calgary, AB, T2P 3C4. To be effective, a proxy must be received by Odyssey or the Secretary of the Company not later than June 28, 2021 at 10:30 a.m. (Toronto time), or in the case of any adjournment or postponement of the Meeting, not less than 48 hours, Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excepted, prior to the time of the adjourned or postponed Meeting.

Non-Registered Holders who receive meeting materials through their Intermediary should follow the instructions on the document and the instructions of their Intermediary regarding when and where the form of proxy or Voting Instruction Form is to be delivered. Since the Meeting will take place virtually, the process for appointing another person as your proxyholder (other than the named proxyholders) to access the Meeting and vote on your behalf is different than it would be for an in-person meeting. You must therefore follow the instructions on your form of proxy very carefully.

Revocation of Proxies

A registered Shareholder who has given a proxy may revoke it, in addition to any other manner permitted by law, by:

- (1) depositing an instrument in writing signed by the Shareholder or by the Shareholder's attorney, who is authorized in writing, with Odyssey or at the registered office of the Company, at any time up to and including the last business day preceding the day of the Meeting, or if the Meeting is adjourned or postponed, the last business day preceding the day of the adjournment or postponement;
- (2) transmitting, by telephonic or electronic means, a revocation signed by electronic signature by the Shareholder or the Shareholder's attorney, who is authorized in writing, to the registered office of the Company at any time up to and including the last business day preceding the day of the Meeting, or any adjournment or postponement of the Meeting, at which the proxy is to be used; and
- (3) by voting again using the online ballot at the virtual Meeting, which will serve to revoke your previously submitted proxy.

The Chair of the meeting may waive or extend the proxy cut-off without notice.

A Non-Registered Holder may revoke a Voting Instruction Form or a waiver of the right to receive meeting materials and to vote, which has been given to an Intermediary or its service company at any time by written notice to the Intermediary in accordance with the instructions received from the Intermediary, except that an Intermediary may



not act on a revocation of a Voting Instruction Form or a waiver of the right to receive meeting materials and to vote that is not received by the Intermediary in sufficient time prior to the Meeting. Non-Registered Holders who have deposited a form of proxy signed by their Intermediary and who wish to change their vote must contact their Intermediary, since only registered Shareholders may revoke a legal proxy.

Attending and Participating at the Meeting

The Company is holding the Meeting as a completely virtual meeting, which will be conducted via live webcast. Shareholders will not be able to attend the Meeting in person. In order to attend, submit questions or vote at the Meeting (including for voting and asking questions at the Meeting), Shareholders must have a valid Username. Guests are welcome to attend and view the webcast but will be unable to submit questions or vote at the Meeting. To join as a guest, please visit the Meeting online at web.lumiagm.com/211875806 and select "Join as a Guest" when prompted.

Registered Shareholders and duly appointed proxyholders will be able to attend, submit questions and vote at the Meeting online at web.lumiagm.com/211875806. Such persons may then enter the Meeting by clicking "I have a login" and entering a Username and Password before the start of the Meeting:

Registered Shareholders

Registered Shareholders can access, submit questions and vote at the Meeting during the live webcast as follows:

- 1. Log in online at web.lumiagm.com/**211875806** at least 15 minutes before the Meeting starts. Please check that your browser is compatible.
- 2. Click "I have a login".
- 3. Enter your control number (on your proxy form or in the email notification you received) as your username.
- 4. Enter the password: "mjardin2021" (case sensitive).
- 5. Follow the instructions to access the Meeting and vote (if you have not previously submitted a proxy) when prompted.

Even if you currently plan to participate in the virtual Meeting, you should consider voting your MJardin Shares by proxy in advance so that your vote will be counted if you later decide not to attend the Meeting or in the event that you are unable to access the Meeting for any reason. If you access and vote on any matter at the Meeting during the live webcast, then you will revoke any previously submitted proxy.

Duly-appointed Proxyholders

Odyssey will provide the proxyholder with a Username by e-mail after the voting deadline has passed. The Password to the Meeting is "mjardin2021" (case sensitive). Only registered Shareholders and duly appointed proxyholders will be entitled to attend, submit questions and vote at the Meeting. Non-Registered Holders who have not duly appointed themselves as proxyholder will be able to attend the meeting as a guest but not be able to submit questions or vote at the Meeting. Shareholders who wish to appoint a third-party proxyholder to represent them at the Meeting (including beneficial Shareholders who wish to appoint themselves as proxyholder to attend, submit questions or vote at the Meeting) MUST submit their duly completed proxy or voting instruction form AND register the proxyholder. See "Appointment of a Third Party as Proxy" above.



Guests

Guests, including Non-Registered Holders who have not duly appointed themselves as proxyholders, can log into the Meeting as set out below. Guests can watch the live webcast of the Meeting but are not able to vote or submit questions at the Meeting.

- 1. Log in online at web.lumiagm.com/**211875806** at least 15 minutes before the Meeting starts. Please check that your browser is compatible.
- 2. Click "Guest" and then complete the online form.

Asking Questions at the Meeting

MJardin believes that the ability to participate in the Meeting in a meaningful way, including by asking questions, remains important despite the decision to hold this year's meeting virtually. Registered Shareholders and proxyholders (including Non-Registered Holders who have appointed themselves as proxyholder) accessing the Meeting will have an opportunity to submit questions at the Meeting in writing by sending a message to the Chair of the Meeting online through the virtual meeting platform. It is anticipated that Shareholders will have substantially the same opportunity to ask questions on matters of business before the Meeting as in past years when the annual Shareholders meeting was held in person.

Difficulties in Accessing the Meeting

Shareholders with questions regarding the virtual meeting portal or requiring assistance accessing the meeting website may call Odyssey at 1.888.290.1175 (1.587.885.0960 if outside Canada and the US) for additional information.

If you are accessing the Meeting you must remain connected to the internet at all times during the Meeting in order to vote when balloting commences. It is your responsibility to ensure internet connectivity for the duration of the Meeting. Note that if you lose connectivity once the Meeting has commenced, there may be insufficient time to resolve your issue before ballot voting is completed. Therefore, even if you currently plan to access the Meeting and vote during the live webcast, you should consider voting your MJardin Shares in advance or by proxy so that your vote will be counted in the event you experience any technical difficulties or are otherwise unable to access the Meeting.

How MJardin Shares Will Be Voted

On any ballot that may be called for, the MJardin Shares represented by a properly executed proxy will be voted or withheld from voting in accordance with the instructions given on the proxy, and if the Shareholder specifies a choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon, the MJardin Shares will be voted accordingly. If no direction is given in a proxy with respect to any matter set out therein, the proxy will be voted **IN FAVOUR OF** such matter.

The form of proxy confers discretionary authority upon the persons named in the proxy to vote as he or she sees fit with respect to amendments to matters identified in the Notice of Meeting and with respect to other matters that may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the Meeting. As of the date of this Circular, management of the Company is not aware of any such amendment or other matter to come before the Meeting.

Notice-and-Access

The Company has adopted the "notice-and-access" mechanism of delivering materials to both registered Shareholders and Non-Registered Holders in connection with the Meeting. As such, the Company has posted



electronic copies of the notice of meeting, this Circular and the Company's annual financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2020 and related management's discussion and analysis (collectively, the "Meeting Materials") on the Company's website at https://investors.mjardin.com/resources/annual-general-meeting/default.aspx and on the Company's profile on the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval ("SEDAR") at www.sedar.com, instead of printing and mailing out paper copies, as permitted by Canadian securities regulators. Notice-and-access allows issuers to post electronic versions of proxy-related materials online via SEDAR and one other website, rather than mailing paper copies of such materials to Shareholders.

Shareholders with questions about notice-and-access can call the Company's transfer agent, Odyssey, toll free at 1.833-394-7716 (1.833-361-5163 if outside Canada and the US).

Shareholders, including non-objecting beneficial owners of Common Shares, will receive paper copies of a notice package (the "Notice Package") via pre-paid mail containing a notice with the information prescribed by National Instrument 54-101 – Communications with Beneficial Owners of Securities of a Reporting Issuer ("NI 54-101") and a form of proxy (if a registered Shareholder) or a Voting Instruction Form (if a Non-Registered Holder). We intend to pay for intermediaries to delivery proxy-related materials to objecting beneficial shareholders. The Company will not use procedures known as "stratification" in relation to the use of notice-and-access. Stratification occurs when an issuer using notice-and-access sends a paper copy of the Circular to some security holders with a Notice Package.

How to Obtain Paper Copies of the Meeting Materials

All Shareholders may request that a paper copy of the Meeting Materials be sent to them at no cost. Prior to the Meeting, requests may be made by contacting Odyssey toll free at 1.833-394-7716 (1.833-361-5163 if outside Canada and the US). Requests may be made up to one year from the date the Meeting Materials were filed on SEDAR. To obtain paper copies of the Meeting Materials after the Meeting, please contact the Company by calling 416.309.2077 or sending an email to Ali.Mahdavi@MJardin.com. A paper copy of the Meeting Materials will be mailed to you within three business days of receiving your request, if the request is made at any time prior to the Meeting. We estimate that your request for Meeting Materials will need to be received on or before June 16, 2021 in order to receive your paper copies in advance of the deadline for submission of forms of proxy and/or Voting Instruction Forms in respect of the Meeting.

INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS OR COMPANIES IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

Except as otherwise disclosed in this Circular, none of the directors or executive officers of the Company, none of the MJardin Nominees (as defined in "Election of Directors"), none of the persons who have been directors or executive officers of the Company since the commencement of the Company's last completed financial year and none of the associates or affiliates of any of the foregoing persons has any material interest, direct or indirect, by way of beneficial ownership of securities or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon at the Meeting, other than the election of directors.

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

The board of directors of MJardin (the "MJardin Board") has fixed May 14, 2021 as the record date for the Meeting (the "Record Date"). Shareholders at the close of business on the Record Date are entitled to receive notice of the Meeting and to vote thereat or at any adjournment or postponement thereof, except to the extent that: (i) a registered Shareholder has transferred the ownership of any MJardin Shares subsequent to the Record Date; and (ii) the transferee of those MJardin Shares produces properly endorsed share certificates, or otherwise establishes that they own the Shares and demand, not later than ten (10) days before the Meeting, that their name be included on the list of persons entitled to vote at the Meeting, in which case, the transferee shall be entitled to vote such Shares at the Meeting. The transfer books will not be closed.

The authorized capital of the Company consists of an unlimited number of Common Shares and an unlimited number of Class A Shares, each of which has a restricted right to convert into one thousand (1,000) Common Shares without the payment of additional consideration. As of the Record Date, there were 84,087,444 Common Shares and 6,022.95 Class A Shares outstanding. The holders of Common Shares are entitled to one vote per Common Share at all meetings of the Shareholders and the holders of Class A Shares are entitled to one vote for each Common Share into which such Class A Share could then be converted (one thousand (1,000) votes per Class A Share).

As of the Record Date, to the knowledge of the Company's directors and Named Executive Officers (as defined in "Statement of Executive Compensation"), no person or company beneficially owns, or controls or directs, directly or indirectly voting securities carrying 10% or more of the voting rights attached to any class of voting securities of the Company.

As of the Record Date, the Company's directors and Named Executive Officers, as a group, beneficially own, directly or indirectly, 6,366,742 Common Shares and Class A Shares representing, in the aggregate, approximately 7.07% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares and Class A Shares of the Company.

MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON AT THE MEETING

Financial Statements

The Company's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 and the report of the auditor thereon will be placed before the Meeting.

The audited consolidated financial statements are available on the Company's website at investors.mjardin.com and on the Company's profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. All Shareholders may request a paper copy of the audited consolidated financial statements by contacting Odyssey toll free at 1.888.290.1175 (1.587.885.0960 if outside Canada and the US). The financial statements and the report of the auditor thereon do not require a vote at the Meeting.

Election of Directors

The term of office for each director is from the date of the Meeting at which he or she is elected until the next following annual meeting or until his or her successor is elected or appointed. At the Meeting, a board of four (4) directors will be proposed for election. Management has been informed that each of the director nominees (the "MJardin Nominees") whose names are set forth below under the heading "Nominees for Election as Director" is willing to serve as director if elected. Each of the MJardin Nominees has been a director since the date indicated opposite the proposed nominee's name. Management does not contemplate that any of the MJardin Nominees will be unable to serve as a director, but if that should occur for any reason prior to the Meeting, the MJardin Shares represented by properly executed proxies voted in favour of such nominee(s) may be voted by the person(s) designated by management of the Company in the enclosed form of proxy, in their discretion, in favour of another nominee.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding each of the MJardin Nominees, their respective positions with the Company, principal occupations or employment during the last five (5) years, the dates on which they became directors of the Company and the approximate number of MJardin Shares beneficially owned by them, directly or indirectly, or over which control or direction is exercised by them as of the Record Date.

Name and Residence	Position held with the Company	Director Since	Independence and Committee Membership	Principal Occupation for the Previous Five Years	Shares Beneficially Owned Directly or Indirectly
Anthony Dutton, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada	Director	May 25, 2021	Independent	Co-founder and CEO, Cannex Capital Group Inc.; CEO, President and Director, IBC Advanced Alloys Corp.	Nil
James Lowe Denver, Colorado, United States	Director	May 6, 2019	Independent	Co-Founder of MJAR Holdings; Executive Vice President of Operations at GrowForce Holdings Inc.; Owner of Cloud 9 Support	6,202,014 Common Shares
Patrick Witcher Denver, Colorado, United States	Director and Chief Executive Officer	April 30, 2021	Non- independent by virtue of his executive position within the Company.	President, Buddy Boy Brands; VP Strategic Partnerships, GrowForce Holdings; COO/CEO MJardin Group	Nil
Blair Jordan, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada	Director	May 25, 2021	Independent	Managing Partner of Restructur Advisors, Managing Director of Echelon Wealth Partners Inc., Leveraged Finance/Restructuring at Credit Suisse Group, Corporate and Securities Lawyer at Bennett Jones LLP	Nil

Corporate Cease Trade Orders or Bankruptcies

To the knowledge of the Company and based upon information provided by the MJardin Nominees, no MJardin Nominee is, or has been, within ten (10) years before the date of this Circular, a director or executive officer of any issuer that, while that person was acting in that capacity: (i) was the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the issuer access to any exemption under securities legislation for a period of more than thirty (30) consecutive days; or (ii) was subject to an event that resulted, after the person ceased to be a director or executive officer, in the issuer being the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the issuer access to any exemption under securities legislation for a period of more than thirty (30) consecutive days.

To the knowledge of the Company and based upon information provided by the MJardin Nominees, no MJardin Nominee is, or has been, within ten (10) years before the date of this Circular, a director or executive officer of any company that, while that person was acting in that capacity or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was

subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets.

Personal Bankruptcies

To the knowledge of the Company and based upon information provided by the MJardin Nominees, none of the MJardin Nominees have, within ten (10) years before the date of this Circular, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or became subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold such person's assets.

Securities Penalties or Sanctions

To the knowledge of the Company and based upon information provided by the MJardin Nominees, none of the MJardin Nominees have: (i) been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by a securities regulatory authority or have entered into a settlement agreement with a securities regulatory authority, other than penalties for late filing of insider reports; or (ii) been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would likely be considered important to a reasonable Shareholder in deciding whether to vote for a proposed director.

It is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy, if not expressly directed to the contrary in such form of proxy, to vote such proxies <u>FOR</u> the election of each of the MJardin Nominees specified above as directors of the Company. If, prior to the Meeting, any vacancies occur in the proposed MJardin Nominees herein submitted, the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy intend to vote FOR the election of any substitute nominee or nominees recommended by management of the Company and FOR each of the remaining proposed MJardin Nominees.

Appointment of Auditors

MNP LLP ("MNP") were first appointed as auditors of the Company on November 13, 2018. The Company recommends that MNP continue as the Company's auditors and hold office until the close of the next annual meeting of Shareholders or until a successor is appointed, and to authorize the MJardin Board to fix the auditors' remuneration.

It is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy, if not expressly directed to the contrary in such form of proxy, to vote <u>FOR</u> the re-appointment of MNP as the auditors of the Company to hold office until the next annual meeting of Shareholders or until a successor is appointed and the authorization of the directors to fix the remuneration of the auditors.

STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The purpose of this Statement of Executive Compensation is to provide information about the Company's philosophy, objectives and processes regarding executive compensation. This disclosure is intended to communicate the compensation provided to: (i) the Chief Executive Officer of the Company ("CEO"), (ii) the Chief Financial Officer of the Company ("CFO"), (iii) the three most highly compensated executive officer of the Company and its subsidiaries, whose individual total compensation was more than \$150,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020 (collectively, the "Named Executive Officers" or "NEOs"); and (iv) the directors of the Company. All figures contained in this Circular are in Canadian dollars unless indicated otherwise.

During the year ended December 31, 2020 the Named Executive Officers of the Company were Patrick Witcher, Edward Jonasson, Corey Goodman, Benjamin Franz, and Eric Gattoni.

Approach to Executive Compensation

The executive compensation program adopted by the Company and applied to its executive officers is designed to attract and retain qualified and experienced executives who will contribute to the success of the Company. The executive compensation program attempts to ensure that the compensation of the senior executive officers provides a competitive base compensation package and a strong link between corporate performance and compensation. Senior executive officers are motivated through the program to enhance long-term Shareholder value and rewarded for their yearly individual contribution in the context of overall annual corporate performance.

The Compensation, Nomination and Governance Committee of the MJardin Board (the "CNG Committee") is responsible for determining the compensation for the directors and the executive officers. The CNG Committee seeks to ensure that the Company's compensation goals and objectives, as applied to the actual compensation paid to the Company's directors and executive officers, are aligned with the Company's overall business objectives and Shareholder interests.

Elements of Compensation

The executive compensation program during the year ended December 31, 2020 consisted of three principal elements: (a) base salary; (b) an annual, discretionary cash bonus; and (c) long-term equity incentives granted under the Company's Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan adopted on November 14, 2018 (the "Equity Incentive Plan") and any other equity plan that may be approved by the MJardin Board. These three principal elements of compensation are described below.

Senior management and executive compensation is determined in consultation with the CNG Committee. Senior management and executive compensation is based on certain subjective elements and are considered on a case by case basis. Events from prior years have not influenced the compensation plan. There were no significant changes in the Company's compensation in the year ended December 31, 2020.

Base Salary

Base salaries are intended to provide an appropriate level of fixed compensation that will assist in employee retention and recruitment. Base salaries will be determined on an individual basis, taking into consideration the past, current and potential contribution to MJardin's success, the position and responsibilities of the NEOs and competitive industry pay practices for other companies of similar size and revenue growth potential.

Annual Cash Bonus

Annual bonuses will be awarded based on qualitative and quantitative performance standards and will reward performance of the NEO individually. The determination of an NEO's performance may vary from year to year depending on economic conditions and conditions in the marijuana industry and may be based on measures such as stock price performance, the meeting of financial targets against budget (such as adjusted funds from operations), the meeting of acquisition objectives and balance sheet performance.

Long-Term Equity Incentives

The Company has adopted the Equity Incentive Plan to provide that the MJardin Board may from time to time, in its discretion, and in accordance with the applicable Canadian Securities Exchange requirements, grant to directors, officers, employees and consultants to the Company (i) stock options, (ii) restricted stock awards, (iii) compensatory share awards, (iv) stock appreciation rights, (v) restricted stock units and (vi) other equity incentives. For more information on the Equity Incentive Plan, please see below under the heading "Equity Incentive Plan".



The size of stock option grants to NEOs is dependent on each officer's level of responsibility, authority and importance to the Company and the degree to which such officer's long-term contribution to the Company will be crucial to its long-term success. Previous grants are taken into account when considering new grants.

Director and Named Executive Officer Compensation, Excluding Compensation Securities

The following table sets forth the compensation paid to the Company's Named Executive Officers and directors for the years ended December 31, 2020, December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018:

	Table of compensation excluding compensation securities						
Name and Position	Year	Salary, consulting fee, retainer or commission (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Committe e or meeting fees (\$)	Value of perquisite s (\$)	Value of all other compensatio n (\$)	Total compensatio n (\$)
Patrick Witcher	2020	\$448,165 ⁽²⁾	\$311,860(2)	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$760,025(1), (2)
Director, Chief Executive	2019	\$301,000(2)	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$301,000(2)
Officer; Former Chief Operating Officer (1)	2018	\$253,765 ⁽²⁾	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$253,765 ⁽²⁾
	2020	\$276,634	\$170,250	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$446,884
Edward Jonasson	2019	\$30,192	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$30,192
Chief Financial	2018	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil
Officer ⁽³⁾	2018	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil
	2020	\$218,653	\$119,000	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$337,653
Corey Goodman, EVP & General Counsel ⁽⁴⁾	2019	\$107,692	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$107,692
	2018	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil
Eric Gattoni,	2020	\$199,538	\$92,376	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$291,914
Former SVP, Operation; SVP Business	2019	\$185,000	Ni	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$185,000
Development (5)	2018	\$74,711	\$11,027	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$85,738
Benjamin Franz,	2020	\$252,290 ⁽²⁾	\$112,168 ⁽²⁾	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$365,090 ⁽²⁾
President, Global Operations ⁽⁶⁾	2019	\$258,215 ⁽²⁾	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$258,215 ⁽²⁾

	Table of compensation excluding compensation securities						
Name and Position	Year	Salary, consulting fee, retainer or commission (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Committe e or meeting fees (\$)	Value of perquisite s (\$)	Value of all other compensatio n (\$)	Total compensatio n (\$)
	2018	\$202,901(2)	Nil	Nil	Nil	391,012 ⁽²⁾	\$593,913 ⁽²⁾
Adrian Montgomery Director,	2020	\$110,908	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$110,908
Chairman, Former Interim Chief Executive	2019	\$348,302	\$150,000	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$498,302
Officer (7)	2018	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil
James Lowe Director (7)	2020	\$65,276 ⁽²⁾	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$65,276 ⁽²⁾
Director W	2019	\$32,789(2)	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$32,789 ⁽²⁾
	2020	\$86,700	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$86,700
Graham Marr Director ^{(7),(8)}	2019	\$52,008	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$52,008
	2018	\$16,986	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$16,986
	2020	\$73,627	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$73,627
Roman Kocur Director ^{(7), (9)}	2019	\$79,235	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$79,235
	2018	\$16,986	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$16,986
	2020	\$90,519	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$90,519
Lorne Sugarman Director ^{(7), (10)}	2019	\$79,235	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	\$79,235
	2018	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil
Blair Jordan Director ⁽¹¹⁾	2020	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil

	Table of compensation excluding compensation securities						
Name and Position	Year	Salary, consulting fee, retainer or commission (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Committe e or meeting fees (\$)	Value of perquisite s (\$)	Value of all other compensatio n (\$)	Total compensatio n (\$)
Anthony Dutton Director ⁽¹²⁾	2020	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil

- (1) Mr. Witcher was hired on March 25, 2018 as VP Government Affairs of GrowForce Holdings, promoted to Chief Operating Officer of MJardin Group on May 8, 2019 and promoted to Chief Executive Officer on November 17, 2019. Mr. Witcher joined the Board of Directors on April 29, 2021 and did not earn Board related compensation in 2020.
- (2) These figures have been converted from US\$ to CDN\$ at the rate of \$1.3415 and have been rounded. This was the average Bank of Canada foreign exchange rate in 2020.
- (3) Mr. Jonasson joined the organization as Chief Financial Officer on November 1, 2019.
- (4) Mr. Corey Goodman was hired as a part-time General Counsel in May 2019. In September 2020, was hired full time as EVP and General Counsel. Mr. Goodman resigned on November 14, 2021 from MJardin Group.
- (5) Eric Gattoni was hired by GrowForce Holdings in July 2018 as VP, Operations. In December 2018, Mr. Gattoni was promoted to SVP, Operations and then in March 2020 transitioned into SVP, Business Development.
- (6) Benjamin Franz was hired by MJardin on October 1, 2010. He was promoted to SVP, Cultivation in December 2018 and promoted to President, Global Operations in March of 2020. Mr. Franz received compensation shares in 2018 at a value of USD \$294,68.
- (7) Director compensation is \$50,000 USD paid quarterly (\$100,000 for Chairman), plus \$10,000 for Committee Chairs. Director compensation foreign exchange rate for 2020 is \$1.3415 USD-\$1.00 CDN.
- (8) Mr. Graham Marr resigned as Director on April 29, 2021
- (9) Mr. Roman Kocur resigned as Director January 18, 2021
- (10) Mr. Lorne Sugarman resigned as Director on January 18, 2021
- (11) Mr. Jordan joined the Board on May 26, 2021 and received no compensation from MJardin in 2020.
- (12) Mr. Dutton joined the Board on May 26, 2021 and received no compensation from MJardin in 2020.

Stock Options and Other Compensation Securities

The following table sets forth information with respect to all compensation securities granted or issued to the Company's Named Executive Officers and directors by the Company in the most recently completed financial year for services provided or to be provided, directly or indirectly, to the Company:

Compensation Securities

Name and position ⁽¹³⁾	Type of compensat ion security	Number of compensation securities, number of underlying securities, and percentage of class ⁽¹²⁾	Date of issue or grant	Issue, conversion or exercise price (\$)	Closing price of security or underlying security on date of grant (\$)	Closing price of security or underlying security at year end (\$)	Expiry date
Patrick Witcher Director, Chief Executive Officer; Former Chief Operating Officer (1)	Options	1,507,520 0.2% ⁽¹¹⁾	30-Sept- 20	\$0.045	\$0.045	\$0.055	30-Sept- 23

	Ontions	981,250	30-Sept-	\$0.045	\$0.045	\$0.055	30-Sept-
Edward Jonasson Chief Financial Officer (2)	Options	0.1% ⁽¹¹⁾	20	Ş0.0 4 3	30.043	\$0.033	23
Chief Financial Officer (-)							
	Options	195,625	30-Sept- 20	\$0.045	\$0.045	\$0.055	30-Sept- 23
Corey Goodman, EVP & General Counsel ⁽³⁾		0.2%(11)					
	Options	448,425	30-Sept- 20	\$0.045	\$0.045	\$0.055	30-Sept- 23
Eric Gattoni, Former SVP, Operation; SVP Business Development ⁽⁴⁾		0.5%(11)					
	Options	458,500	30-Sept- 20	\$0.045	\$0.045	\$0.055	30-Sept- 23
Benjamin Franz, President, Global Operations ⁽⁵⁾		0.5%(11)					
Adrian Montgomery	Options	525,000	30-Sept- 20	\$0.045	\$0.045	\$0.055	30-Sept- 23
Director, Chairman, Former Interim Chief Executive Officer ⁽⁶⁾		0.6% ⁽¹¹⁾					
	Options	132,000	30-Sept- 20	\$0.045	\$0.045	\$0.055	30-Sept- 23
James Lowe Director ⁽⁷⁾		0.2%(11)					
	Options	102,500	30-Sept- 20	\$0.045	\$0.045	\$0.055	30-Sept- 23
Graham Marr Director ⁽⁸⁾		0.1%(11)					
	Options	111,500	30-Sept- 20	\$0.045	\$0.045	\$0.055	30-Sept- 23
Roman Kocur Director ⁽⁹⁾		0.1%(11)					
	Options	134,000	30-Sept- 20	\$0.045	\$0.045	\$0.055	30-Sept- 23
Lorne Sugarman Director ⁽¹⁰⁾		0.2% (11)					
	1	1	1		<u> </u>		1

⁽¹⁾ Mr. Patrick Witcher was granted 1,507,520 Options on September 30, 2020 with a strike price of \$0.045 CAD. Mr. Witcher agreed to cancel previously awarded Options of 222,000 at several strike prices of \$12.00, \$6.67 and \$0.48 CAD and previously awarded Restricted Stock Units of 596,500. 344,255 Options vested on September 30, 2021; 75,000 Options vested on November 19, 2021; 129,096 Options vested on December 31, 2021; 887,669 Options will vest quarterly and proportionately thru September 29, 2022.

- (2) Mr. Edward Jonasson was granted 981,250 Options on September 30, 2020 with a strike price of \$0.045 CAD. Mr. Jonasson agreed to cancel previously awarded Options of 50,000 at a strike price of \$0.46 CAD and previously awarded Restricted Stock Units of 392,500. 270,313 Options vested on September 30, 2021; 50,000 Options vested on October 1, 2021; 82,617 Options vested on December 31, 2021; 578,320 Options will vest quarterly and proportionately thru September 29, 2022.
- (3) Mr. Corey Goodman was granted 707,500 Options on September 30, 2020 with a strike price of \$0.045 CAD. Mr. Goodman agreed to cancel previously awarded Options of 100,000 at a strike price of \$0.73 CAD and previously awarded Restricted Stock Units of 250,000. 183,125 Options vested on September 30, 2021; 12,500 Options vested on October 1, 2020. Mr. Goodman's remaining options were cancelled when he resigned on November 14, 2020.
- (4) Mr. Eric Gattoni was granted 448,425 Options on September 30, 2020 with a strike price of \$0.045 CAD. Mr. Gattoni agreed to cancel previously awarded Options of 75,000 at a strike price of \$6.67 CAD and previously awarded Restricted Stock Units of 175,800. 142,706 Options vested on September 30, 2021; 38,215 Options vested on December 31, 2021; 267,504 Options will vest quarterly and proportionately thru September 29, 2022.
- (5) Mr. Benjamin Franz was granted 458,500 Options on September 30, 2020 with a strike price of \$0.045 CAD. Mr. Franz agreed to cancel previously awarded Options of 175,000 at a strike price of \$12.00 CAD and previously awarded Restricted Stock Units of 185,000. 152,125 Options vested on September 30, 2021; 38,297 Options vested on December 31, 2021; 268,078 Options will vest quarterly and proportionately thru September 29, 2022.
- (6) Mr. Adrian Montgomery was granted 525,000 Options on September 30, 2020 with a strike price of \$0.045 CAD. Mr. Montgomery agreed to cancel previously awarded Options of 150,000 at a strike price of \$1.65 CAD and previously awarded Restricted Stock Units of 345,000. 281,250 Options vested on September 30, 2021; 21,094 Options vested on December 31, 2021; 222,656 Options will vest quarterly and proportionately thru September 29, 2022.
- (7) Mr. James Lowe was granted 132,000 Options on September 30, 2020 with a strike price of \$0.045 CAD. Mr. Lowe agreed to cancel previously awarded Options of 120,000 at a strike price of \$6.67 CAD and previously awarded Restricted Stock Units of 45,000. 33,000 Options vested on September 30, 2021; 12,375 Options vested on December 31, 2021; 86,625 Options will vest quarterly and proportionately thru September 29, 2022.
- (8) Mr. Graham Marr was granted 102,500 Options on September 30, 2020 with a strike price of \$0.045 CAD. Mr. Marr agreed to cancel previously awarded Options of 50,000 at a strike price of \$12.00 CAD and previously awarded Restricted Stock Units of 47,500. 44,375 Options vested on September 30, 2021; 7,266 Options vested on December 31, 2021; 7,266 Options vested in 2021 before Mr. Marr resigned from the Board on April 29, 2021.
- (9) Mr. Roman Kocur was granted 111,500 Options on September 30, 2020 with a strike price of \$0.045 CAD. Mr. Kocur agreed to cancel previously awarded Options of 50,000 at a strike price of \$12.00 CAD and previously awarded Restricted Stock Units of 56,500. 46,625 Options vested on September 30, 2021; 8,106 Options vested on December 31, 2021; Mr. Kocur's remaining options were cancelled when he resigned on January 18, 2021
- (10) Mr. Lorne Sugarman was granted 134,000 Options on September 30, 2020 with a strike price of \$0.045 CAD. Mr. Sugarman agreed to cancel previously awarded Options of 72, 000at a strike price of \$6.67 CAD and previously awarded Restricted Stock Units of 54,000. 33,000 Options vested on September 30, 2021; 12,563 Options vested on December 31, 2021; Mr. Sugarman's remaining options were cancelled when he resigned on January 18, 2021
- (11) Percentage based on Common Shares as of December 31, 2020.
- (12) Numbers reflect securities held by options holders as of December 31, 2020.
- (13) Mr. Dutton and Mr. Jordan did not receive compensation securities in 2020 or in years previous.

The following table sets forth information with respect to all compensation securities exercised by the Company's Named Executive Officers and directors during the most recently completed financial year:

Exercise of Compensation Securities by Directors and NEOs							
Name and position	Type of compensation security	Number of underlying securities exercised	Exercise price per security (\$)	Date of exercise	Closing price per security on date of exercise (\$)	Difference between exercise price and closing price on date of exercise (\$)	Total value on exercise date (\$)
Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil

No Named Executive Officers and directors exercised compensation securities in 2020.

Equity Incentive Plan

The Equity Incentive Plan enables MJardin and its affiliated companies to advance the interests of the Company by: (i) providing eligible participants with additional incentives to put forth maximum efforts; (ii) encouraging share ownership by such eligible participants thereby aligning the interests of such persons with that of the Company; (iii) increasing the proprietary interest of eligible participants in the success of the Company; (iv) promoting growth and profitability of the Company; (v) encouraging eligible participants to take into account long-term corporate performance; (vi) rewarding eligible participants for sustained contributions to the Company and/or significant performance achievements of the Company; and (vii) enhancing the Company's ability to attract, retain, promote and motivate eligible participants to advance the future success of the Company.

The Equity Incentive Plan permits the grant of: (i) nonqualified stock options ("NQSOs") and incentive stock options ("ISOs") (collectively, "Options"); (ii) restricted stock awards; (iii) compensatory stock awards; (iv) stock appreciation rights; (v) restricted stock units ("RSUs"); (vi) deferred share units ("DSUs"); and (vi) other stock-based awards that are denominated in, valued in whole or part by reference to, or otherwise based on or related to Shares (collectively, the "Awards").

Any of the Company's employees, officers, directors, consultants (who are natural persons) are eligible to participate in the Equity Incentive Plan at the discretion of the CNG Committee. Up to 12.5% of the total number of Shares issued and outstanding from time to time are currently reserved for issuance upon the exercise of Awards granted pursuant to the Equity Incentive Plan, while up to 10% of the issued and outstanding Shares are reserved for issuance to insiders (as such term is defined in the *Securities Act* (Ontario)). As of the Record Date, the Company had outstanding Awards to purchase 7,533,809 Common Shares, of which 5,108,195 have been granted to Named Executive Officers and directors of the Company.

Awards

Options

The CNG Committee has granted 6,654,799 Options to purchase Shares, of which 5,108,195 have been granted to Named Executive Officers and directors of the Company as of December 31, 2020. Options granted under the Equity Incentive Plan are subject to the terms and conditions established by the CNG Committee. Under the terms of the Equity Incentive Plan, unless the CNG Committee determines otherwise in the case of an Option substituted for another Option in connection with a corporate transaction, the exercise price of the Options will not be less than the fair market value of the Common Shares at the time of grant. Options granted under the Equity Incentive Plan are subject to such terms, including the exercise price and the conditions and timing of exercise, as may be determined by the CNG Committee and specified in the applicable award agreement. The maximum term of an Option granted under the Equity Incentive Plan is ten (10) years from the date of grant (or five (5) years in the case of an ISO granted to a Shareholder who holds 10% or more of the issued and outstanding Shares of the Company). Payment in respect of the exercise of an Option may be made in cash or by check, by surrender of unrestricted Shares (at their fair market value on the date of exercise) or by such other method as the CNG Committee may determine to be appropriate.

Restricted Stock

A restricted stock award is a grant of Shares which are subject to forfeiture restrictions during a restriction period. The CNG Committee will determine the price, if any, to be paid by a grantee for each Share subject to a restricted stock award. The CNG Committee may condition the expiration of the restriction period, if any, upon: (i) the grantee's continued service over a period of time with the Company or its affiliates; (ii) the achievement by the grantee, the Company or its affiliates of any other performance goals set by the CNG Committee; or (iii) any combination of the above conditions as specified in the applicable award agreement. The CNG Committee may, in its discretion, accelerate the vesting and delivery of shares of restricted stock. Unless otherwise provided in the applicable award agreement or as may be determined by the CNG Committee, upon an eligible participant's



termination of service with the Company, the unvested portion of a restricted stock award will be forfeited. As of the Record Date, no restricted stock awards have been granted.

Compensatory Stock

A compensatory stock award is a grant of Shares which is not subject to forfeiture restrictions. The CNG Committee will determine the price, if any, to be paid by a grantee for each Share subject to a compensatory stock award. The CNG Committee may issue compensatory stock awards in the form of Shares, other Awards denominated in Shares, or Awards that provide for cash payments based in whole or in part on the value or future value of Shares under the Incentive Plan. The CNG Committee may, in its discretion, provide that all compensatory stock awards in the form of Shares shall be subject to stop-transfer orders or other restrictions. As of the Record Date, no compensatory stock awards have been granted.

Stock Appreciation Rights

Stock appreciation rights may be granted at such time or times determined by the CNG Committee. A "stock appreciation right" or "SAR" means a right to receive a payment in cash, Shares, or a combination thereof, in the sole discretion of the CNG Committee, in an amount equal to the excess of (i) the fair market value of the underlying Shares on the date the right is exercised over (ii) the Base Amount (defined below), as specified in the respective SAR agreement. Each SAR shall be evidenced by a SAR agreement which shall specify the base price of Shares above which a grantee shall be entitled to share in the appreciation in the value of such Shares (the "Base Amount"). The per Share Base Amount shall not be less than the fair market value of a Common Share on the grant date. The CNG Committee, in its sole discretion, may provide in a SAR agreement for the settlement of any SAR to be in Shares or in cash. Unless otherwise provided in the applicable SAR agreement or as may be determined by the CNG Committee, upon a grantee's termination of service with the Company, the unvested portion of a SAR will be forfeited. As of the Record Date, no SARs have been granted.

Restricted Stock Units

RSUs may be granted at such time or times determined by the CNG Committee. RSUs are credited as a bookkeeping entry in the name of the grantee in an account maintained by the CNG Committee. Unless otherwise provided in an award agreement, upon meeting the applicable vesting criteria, the grantee shall be entitled to receive a payout as specified in the restricted stock unit award agreement. As of the Record Date 879,010 RSUs have vested and 3,183,200 have been fully exercised. The CNG Committee, in its sole discretion and as set forth in the award agreement, may settle RSUs in cash or in Shares (or in a combination thereof) that have an aggregate fair market value equal to the value of the vested RSUs. On the date set forth in the award agreement, all unvested RSUs shall be forfeited to the Company without payment therefor. As of the Record Date, 5,025,200 RSUs have been forfeited.

Deferred Share Units

A DSU is a unit granted to non-employee directors of the Company representing the right to receive a Share or the cash equivalent. Non-employee directors may elect to receive all or a portion of his or her annual retainer in the form of a grant of DSUs in each fiscal year. DSUs are redeemed automatically on the 90th day following the date that the non-employee director ceases to be a director. As of the Record Date, no DSUs have been granted.

Employment, Consulting and Management Agreements

The Company had the following arrangements with its directors and NEOs during the year ended December 31, 2020 under which compensation was to be provided in respect of services provided to the Company and any of its subsidiaries.



Patrick Witcher

In connection with his appointment as Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Witcher entered into an amended employment agreement on November 19, 2019 (the "Witcher Agreement"), pursuant to which he receives an annual base salary of US\$310,000, as well as a cash bonus targeted at 30% of his annual base salary but in any event, no less than \$46,500. Mr. Witcher is also entitled to an additional grant of 250,000 Options and 250,000 RSUs. Under the Witcher Agreement, Mr. Witcher is entitled to participate in all available benefit plans offered to similarly situated employees.

Pursuant to an amendment to the Witcher Agreement dated July 13, 2020, Mr. Witcher's bonus entitlement was increased to 45% for 2020. In addition, his annual base salary increased to U\$\$322,500 in April 2020 as part of the annual performance review process. In the event of his termination for cause, Mr. Witcher is entitled to any accrued and unpaid wages and vacation pay. If Mr. Witcher's employment is terminated without cause, he is entitled to any accrued and unpaid wages and vacation pay, reasonable notice of dismissal or 12 months of pay in lieu thereof, benefit coverage throughout the notice period and the immediate vesting of all of his Awards. Additionally, if Mr. Witcher's termination occurs within 6 months of a change in control, or if he resigns for good reason within that same time frame, Mr. Witcher would be owed an immediate lump sum payment equal to: (i) any and all accrued and unpaid compensation and vacation pay; (ii) the greater of (A) his total annual compensation for 18 months, based on the average total annual compensation awarded to him over the previous 3 completed fiscal years; or (B) two-times the total pay in lieu of notice that would be owed to him in the event of his termination without cause. Finally, Mr. Witcher would still be entitled to benefit coverage for 12 months or until he secured coverage through alternate employment.

Edward Jonasson

Pursuant to an employment agreement (the "Jonasson Agreement") dated November 1, 2019, Edward Jonasson was retained as the Company's CFO, for which he received an annual base salary of \$230,000, as well as a cash bonus targeted at not less than \$69,000, subject to the discretion and written consent of the CEO. Mr. Jonasson is also entitled to 100,000 RSUs and 100,000 options (which were issued to Mr. Jonasson on December 31, 2018 as set forth in the table above).

Under the Jonasson Agreement, Mr. Jonasson is entitled to participate in all available benefit plans offered to similarly situated employees.

Pursuant to an amendment to the Jonasson Agreement dated July 13, 2020, Mr. Jonasson's base salary was increased to \$300,000 and his bonus entitlement increased to 45% for 2020. In the event of his termination for cause, Mr. Jonasson is entitled to any accrued and unpaid wages and vacation pay. If Mr. Jonasson's employment is terminated without cause, he is entitled to any accrued and unpaid wages and vacation pay, reasonable notice of dismissal or 12 months of pay in lieu thereof, statutory severance pay in accordance with the *Employment Standards Act*, benefit coverage throughout the notice period and the immediate vesting of all of his Awards. Additionally, if Mr. Jonasson's termination occurs within 6 months of a change in control, or if he resigns for good reason within that same time frame, Mr. Jonasson would be owed an immediate lump sum payment equal to: (i) any and all accrued and unpaid compensation and vacation pay; (ii) the greater of (A) the total annual compensation for 18 months, based on the average total annual compensation awarded to the him over the previous 3 completed fiscal years; or (B) two-times the total pay in lieu of notice that would be owed to him in the event of his termination without cause. Finally, Mr. Jonasson would still be entitled to benefit coverage for 12 months or until he secured coverage through alternate employment, as well as statutory severance pay pursuant to the *Employment Standards Act*.

Benjamin Franz

In connection with his appointment as President of Cultivation, Mr. Franz entered into an amended employment agreement on April 5, 2020 (the "Franz Agreement"), pursuant to which he receives an annual base salary of US\$182,000, as well as a cash bonus targeted at 20% of his annual base salary. Mr. Franz is entitled to participate in all available benefit plans offered to similarly situated employees.

Pursuant to an amendment to the Franz Agreement dated July 13, 2020, Mr. Franz's bonus entitlement was increased to 35% for 2020. In the event of his termination for cause, Mr. Franz is entitled to any accrued and unpaid wages and vacation pay. If Mr. Franz's employment is terminated without cause, he is entitled to any accrued and unpaid wages and vacation pay, reasonable notice of dismissal or 6 months of pay in lieu thereof, benefit coverage throughout the notice period and the immediate vesting of all of his Awards. Additionally, if Mr. Franz's termination occurs within 6 months of a change in control, or if he resigns for good reason within that same time frame, Mr. Franz would be owed an immediate lump sum payment equal to: (i) any and all accrued and unpaid compensation and vacation pay; (ii) the greater of (A) his total annual compensation for 12 months, based on the average total annual compensation awarded to him over the previous 3 completed fiscal years; or (B) two-times the total pay in lieu of notice that would be owed to him in the event of his termination without cause. Finally, Mr. Franz would still be entitled to benefit coverage for 12 months or until he secured coverage through alternate employment.

Eric Gattoni

Mr. Gattoni entered into an amended employment agreement on July 23, 2018 (the "Gattoni Agreement"), pursuant to which he receives an annual base salary of \$185,000, as well as a cash bonus targeted at \$25,000. Mr. Gattoni is entitled to participate in all available benefit plans offered to similarly situated employees.

Pursuant to an amendment to the Gattoni Agreement dated July 13, 2020, Mr. Gattoni's bonus entitlement was increased to 35% for 2020 and his salary at \$192,500. In the event of his termination for cause, Mr. Gattoni is entitled to any accrued and unpaid wages and vacation pay. If Mr. Gattoni's employment is terminated without cause, he is entitled to any accrued and unpaid wages and vacation pay, reasonable notice of dismissal or 6 months of pay in lieu thereof, benefit coverage throughout the notice period and the immediate vesting of all of his Awards. Additionally, if Mr. Gattoni's termination occurs within 6 months of a change in control, or if he resigns for good reason within that same time frame, Mr. Gattoni would be owed an immediate lump sum payment equal to: (i) any and all accrued and unpaid compensation and vacation pay; (ii) the greater of (A) his total annual compensation for 6 months, based on the average total annual compensation awarded to him over the previous 3 completed fiscal years; or (B) two-times the total pay in lieu of notice that would be owed to him in the event of his termination without cause. Finally, Mr. Gattoni would still be entitled to benefit coverage for 6 months or until he secured coverage through alternate employment.

Pension Plan Disclosure

The Company has not implemented any deferred compensation plan or pension plan that provides for payments or benefits at, following or in connection with retirement.

SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

The following table sets forth the number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of outstanding Options, the weighted-average exercise price of such outstanding Options and the number of Shares remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation plans as at December 31, 2019.

Plan Category	Number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of outstanding Options and RSUs	Weighted-average exercise price of outstanding Options and RSUs	Number of Shares remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation plans (excluding securities reflected in the first column) (1)
Equity compensation plans approved by MJardin Shareholders	6,654,799 Shares pursuant to the exercise of Options	\$1.72	
	879,010 Shares pursuant to the exercise of RSUs	N/A	1,938,660 Common Shares
Equity compensation plans not approved by MJardin Shareholders	1,745,200 Shares pursuant to the exercise of warrants	1,495,2000 at \$3.20 250,000 at \$12.00	Nil
Total	9,279,009 Shares	N/A	1,938,660 Common Shares

⁽¹⁾ The total number of Shares available for future issuance under the Equity Incentive Plan shall not exceed 12.5% of the total number of issued and outstanding Shares.

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

No director, MJardin Nominee, NEO, nor any of their respective associates or affiliates, is or has been indebted to the Company or its subsidiaries since the beginning of the financial year ended December 31, 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE

The Company's Statement of Corporate Governance Practices and audit committee disclosure required for venture issuers is set out in Schedule "A" to this Circular.

INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Except as disclosed in this Circular, neither the Company nor any director or officer of the Company, nor any MJardin Nominee, nor any other insider of the Company, nor any associate or affiliate of any one of them has or has had, at any time since the beginning of the year ended December 31, 2020, any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction or proposed transaction that has materially affected or would materially affect the Company.

Graham Marr is the President of Bringing Finance Inc., the Company's senior lender.

OTHER BUSINESS

Management of the Company is not aware of any other business to come before the Meeting other than as set forth in the Notice of Meeting. If any other business properly comes before the Meeting, it is the intention of the persons

⁽²⁾ These warrants were issued to Rishi Gautam, the former Chief Executive Officer of the Company, under an equity incentive plan that was approved by the board of directors of GrowForce Holdings Inc., a private company that amalgamated with MJardin on December 3, 2018.

named in the form of proxy to vote the Shares represented thereby in accordance with their best judgment on such matter.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to the Company is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com and on the Company's website at investors.mjardin.com. Financial information is contained in the Company's consolidated financial statements and management's discussion and analysis for the year ended December 31, 2020. In addition, a Shareholder may obtain copies of the Company's financial statements and management's discussion and analysis, by contacting the Company by mail at 1 Toronto Street, Suite 801, Toronto, Ontario M5C 2V6 or by telephone at 416.309.2077.

Schedule "A"

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNACE PRACTICES

Capitalized terms used in this Schedule "A" but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Information Circular to which this Schedule "A" is appended.

The MJardin Board and senior management consider good corporate governance to be central to the effective and efficient operation of the Company. Listed below is a brief discussion of the Company's approach to corporate governance.

Statement of Corporate Governance Practices

NI 58-101 requires a venture issuer who solicits a proxy from a security holder for the purpose of electing directors to include specified corporate governance disclosure in its management information circular. Set out below is a description of the Company's current corporate governance practices and other information relating to the MJardin Board, per *National Instrument* 58-101 – *Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices* and related disclosure requirements.

Board of Directors

The MJardin Board facilitates its exercise of independent supervision over management through the participation of directors. Currently, the MJardin Board has five Directors of whom there are independent within the meaning of *NI 58-101*. As of this Circular date, the MJardin Board members are Anthony Dutton, Blair Jordan, James Lowe, Adrian Montgomery and Pat Witcher. Anthony Dutton, Blair Jordan, and James Lowe are independent directors in that they do not have a direct or indirect material relationship with the Company, which could, in the view of the MJardin Board, reasonably interfere with their independent judgement. Adrian Montgomery is not independent as he is the former Chief Executive Officer of the Company. In addition, Patrick Witcher is not considered independent as he holds the position of Chief Executive Officer with MJardin Group.

Directorships

Mr. Montgomery is an officer and director of Enthusiast Gaming Holdings Inc., which is listed on the TSX (EGLX), OTCQB (ENGMF), and the Frankfurt stock exchange (2AV).

Mr. Dutton is a director of Value Capital Trust, which is listed on the TSX.V (VLU.P) and a director of Sanatana Resources, also listed on the TSX.V (STA).

Mr. Jordan is a director and chair of the audit committee of Standard Uranium Corp, which is listed on the TSX.V (STND); a director and member of the audit, governance & nominating, compensation committees of Goldgroup Mining Inc. (TSX: GG); director and chair of the audit committee of Timeless Capital Corp (TSXV: TLC).

Orientation and Continuing Education

New directors will have orientation that includes meetings with management on business directions, operational issues and financial aspects of the Company. The CNG Committee meets with new directors to review and explain the role of the MJardin Board and the expectations of each individual in their role as a director, as well as the nature and operation of the Company's business.

The CNG Committee is mandated with ensuring that continuing education opportunities are provided to all directors so that individual directors may maintain or enhance their skills and abilities as directors. To do so, management

updates the MJardin Board on a regular basis regarding the business and activities of the Company to ensure that the directors have the necessary knowledge to meet their obligations as directors. Directors are encouraged to communicate with management, the auditors and the Company's legal counsel to keep themselves current with the Company's business. Directors are also provided with full access to the Company's records.

Ethical Business Conduct

All MJardin Board members and employees are committed to maintaining the highest standards of integrity and ethical business conduct in the management of the Company and their interaction with all key securityholders. These standards can only be achieved by the Company adhering to the values and principles of conduct.

The Company expects all MJardin Board members and employees to conduct themselves in an ethical and law-abiding manner, in all areas, including but not limited to conflicts of interest and the protection and proper use of corporate assets, information and opportunities. To this end, the MJardin Board has adopted its Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which applies to all directors, officers, employees, contractors and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Conflicts of Interest

Directors have a statutory responsibility to disclose all actual or potential conflicts of interest and generally to abstain from voting on matters in which the director has a conflict of interest. The Company asks that directors recuse themselves from any discussion or decision on any matter in which the director is precluded from voting as a result of a conflict of interest or which otherwise affects such director's personal, business or professional interests.

Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

It is required that the Company is in compliance with all legislation applicable to the Company's business operations, including but not restricted to the laws of the Province of Ontario, as well as with the anti-corruption laws of the United States and Canada and any other relevant Canadian or US laws and legislation applicable in the provinces and states in which the Company conducts business.

All MJardin Board members and employees have a duty to know, understand and comply with any specific legislation pertaining to the business of the Company and any legislation applicable to their duties and responsibilities.

Nomination of Directors

The Company has entrusted the CNG Committee with the responsibility for the nomination of new directors. The CNG Committee annually reviews the appropriate size of the MJardin Board and if necessary, identifies and recommends new candidates with qualified skills, appropriate experience and background, and necessary competencies that are consistent with the Company's goals and objectives.

Compensation

The CNG Committee is responsible for the review and evaluation of the compensation paid to directors, senior executives and the CEO. As such, it seeks to ensure that the Company's compensation goals and objectives, are applied to the actual compensation paid to the Company's CEO, senior executives and directors. The CNG Committee also ensures that such compensation policies and practices are aligned with the Company's overall business objectives and shareholder interests.

The Company's compensation policies and programs are designed to be competitive and to recognize and reward executive performance consistent with the success of the Company's business. These policies and programs are intended to attract and retain capable and experienced individuals. The CNG Committee reviews the adequacy of



remuneration for its directors, senior executives, the CEO and CFO by evaluating their performance in light of the Company's goals and established performance objectives.

AUDIT COMMITTEE INFORMATION

The Audit Committee is governed by an Audit Committee Charter, a copy of which is attached hereto as Appendix 1 of Schedule "A".

Composition of the Audit Committee

As of the date of this Circular, the following were the members of the Audit Committee:

Name	Independence	Financial Literacy	
Anthony Dutton	Yes	Yes	
Blair Jordan ⁽¹⁾	Yes	Yes	
James Lowe	Yes	Yes	
(1) Mr. Jordan is the chai	r of the audit committee		

Relevant Education and Experience

All the members of the Audit Committee have the education and/or practical experience required to understand and evaluate financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of accounting issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of issues that can reasonably be expected to be raised by the Company's financial statements. The following is a brief summary of the education and experience of each member of the Audit Committee that is relevant to the performance of his or her responsibilities as an Audit Committee member:

Anthony Dutton

Anthony has more than twenty years of senior leadership experience in public and private companies. His expertise includes strategic leadership, financing, M&A, operational restructuring, and corporate governance. He also has broad industry experience, including in the cannabis, high tech industrial manufacturing, and oil and gas industries. In his most recent role, Anthony was co-founder and CEO of Cannex Capital Group Inc. ("Cannex"). Cannex owned and supported premium indoor cultivation, extraction, manufacturing and branding of edible and derivative products as well as retail operations. Prior to founding Cannex, Anthony was CEO, President and a director of IBC Advanced Alloys Corp. ("IBC")(TSX-V:IB). IBC is a leading beryllium and copper advanced alloys company serving a variety of industries such as defense, aerospace, automotive, telecommunications, precision manufacturing, and others. Anthony has a B.A. (Econ.) from the University of British Columbia, a M.Arch. from Dalhousie University and an MBA from the Cranfield School of Management in the UK.

Blair Jordan

Mr. Jordan is currently the managing partner of Restructur Advisors, a turnaround and restructuring consulting firm focused on Canada, with particular expertise in the cannabis and cannabinoid sector. Mr. Jordan has acted as a turnaround consultant for several cannabis companies, including acting as CEO and CFO for one of the first ever Companies Creditors Arrangement Act restructurings of a cannabis company. He has also served as CEO and CFO of several public companies, and has served on the boards a Canadian investment bank, cannabis companies, mineral exploration companies and a Capital Pool Corporation. He has served as member of Audit, Governance and Nominating, and Compensation Committees. Mr. Jordan's employment experience includes Managing Director, Investment Banking at Echelon Wealth Partners Inc. in Canada, as well as Director at Credit Suisse Group. He holds an MBA The University of Chicago Booth School of Business, and an LLB from the University of British Columbia.



James Lowe

Mr. Lowe was a co-founder of MJardin Group in the United States and an early-stage entrepreneur in the legal cannabis space since 2009. He owns both recreational and medical licenses in multiple categories of the industry including cultivation, extraction, and retail. He has produced cannabis indoors, outdoors, and in greenhouses ranging from 3,000 sqft to multi-acre facilities. Prior to founding MJardin, Lowe was CEO for Cloud 9 Support, an independent cultivation management and supply company that led both regulatory permitting and cultivation for dozens of facilities during the first years of Colorado's legalization.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Audit Committee of the Company has adopted specific policies and procedures for the engagement of non-audit services. The Audit Committee may delegate to one or more of its members the authority to pre-approve non-audit services, but pre-approval by such member or members so delegated shall be presented to the full Audit Committee at its first scheduled meeting following such pre-approval.

Audit Committee Oversight

At no time since the commencement of the most recently completed financial year of the Company was a recommendation of the Audit Committee to nominate or compensate an external auditor not adopted by the directors of the Company.

Reliance on Certain Exemptions

At no time since the commencement of the most recently completed financial year of the Company has the Company relied on the exemption in section 2.4 of NI 52-110 (De Minimis Non-Audit Services), in section 6.1 of NI 52-110 or an exemption from the application of NI 52-110, in whole or in part, granted under Part 8 of NI 52-110 (Exemptions).

Auditors' Fees

MNP LLP served as the Company's auditors for the year ended December 31, 2019. Fees paid to the Company's auditors for the year ended December 31, 2020 are detailed below:

<u>Fee</u>	For the year ended December 31, 2020	For the year ended December 31, 2019	For the year ended December 31, 2018
Audit Fees ⁽¹⁾	\$968,719	\$805,282	\$616,135
Audit-Related Fees(2)	\$11,235	\$15,000	\$121,481
Tax Fees ⁽³⁾	\$126,764	\$41,730	\$41,844
Total	\$1,106,738	\$862,012	\$779,460

^{(1) &}quot;Audit Fees" include the aggregate professional fees paid to the external auditors for the audit of the annual consolidated financial statements and other annual regulatory audits and filings, regulatory and disclosure review services, and services rendered in connection with restatement of 2018 financial statements



^{(2) &}quot;Audit Related Fees" includes the aggregate fees paid to the external auditors for services related to the audit services, including reviewing quarterly financial statements and management's discussion thereon and conferring with the MJardin Board and Audit Committee regarding financial reporting and accounting standards.

^{(3) &}quot;Tax Fees" include the aggregate fees paid to external auditors for tax compliance, tax advice, tax planning and advisory services, including namely preparation of tax returns.

Appendix 1 of Schedule "A"

MJARDIN GROUP, INC. AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

This charter (the "Charter") sets forth the purpose, composition, responsibilities and authority of the Audit Committee (the "Committee") of the board of directors (the "Board") of MJardin Group, Inc. (the "Company").

1. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

- 1.1. The purpose of the Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to:
 - financial reporting and related financial disclosure;
 - the implementation of risk management and internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures; and
 - external and internal audit processes.

2. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

- 2.1. The Committee shall consist of as many directors of the Board as the Board may determine (the "Members"), but in any event, not less than 3 (three) Members. Each Member shall meet the criteria for independence and financial literacy established by applicable laws and the rules of any stock exchanges upon which the Company's securities are listed, including National Instrument 52-110 Audit Committees ("NI 52-110") subject to any exceptions permitted under NI 52-110. NI 52-110 requires that to be independent, a Member be free of any relationship which could, in the view of the Board, reasonably interfere with the exercise of a Member's independent judgment, and that the member meets certain bright-line tests.
- 2.2. Members shall be appointed by the Board, taking into account any recommendation that may be made by the Compensation, Nomination and Governance Committee of the Board (the "CNG Committee"). Any Member may be removed and replaced at any time by the Board, and may automatically cease to be a Member if he or she ceases to meet the qualifications required of Members. The Board will fill vacancies on the Committee by appointment from among qualified directors of the Board, taking into account any recommendation that may be made by the CNG Committee. If a vacancy exists on the Committee, the remaining Members may exercise all of its powers so long as there is a quorum.

Chair

2.3. The Board will designate one of the independent directors of the Board to be the chair of the Committee (the "Chair"), taking into account any recommendation that may be made by the CNG Committee.

Qualifications

2.4. At least three Members shall be independent and financially literate as described above, subject to available exemptions under NI 52-110. Members must have suitable experience and must be familiar with auditing and financial matters.

Attendance of Ex Officio Members, Management and other Persons

2.5. The Committee may invite, at its discretion, senior executives of the Company or such persons as it sees fit to attend meetings of the Committee and to take part in the discussion and consideration of the affairs of the Committee. The Committee may also require senior executives or other employees of the Company to produce such information and reports as the Committee may deem appropriate in the proper exercise of its duties. Senior executives and other employees of the Company shall attend a Committee meeting if invited by the Committee. The Committee may meet without senior executives in attendance for a portion of any meeting of the Committee.

Delegation

2.6. Subject to applicable law, the Committee may delegate any or all of its functions to any of its Members or any sub-set thereof, or other persons, from time to time as it sees fit.

3. COMMITTEE OPERATIONS

Meetings

- 3.1. The Chair, in consultation with the other Members, shall determine the schedule and frequency of meetings of the Committee. Meetings of the Committee shall be held at such times and places as the Chair may determine. To the extent possible, advance notice of each meeting will be given to each Member unless all Members are present and waive notice, or if those absent waive notice before or after a meeting. Members may attend all meetings of the Committee either in person or by telephone, video or other electronic means. Powers of the Committee may also be exercised by written resolutions signed by all Members.
- 3.2. At the request of the external auditors of the Company, the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Financial Officer of the Company or any Member, the Chair shall convene a meeting of the Committee. Any such request shall set out in reasonable detail the business proposed to be conducted at the meeting so requested.

Agenda and Reporting

- 3.3. To the extent possible, in advance of every regular meeting of the Committee, the Chair shall prepare and distribute, or cause to be prepared and distributed, to the Members and others as deemed appropriate by the Chair, an agenda of matters to be addressed at the meeting together with appropriate briefing materials. The Committee may require senior executives and other employees of the Company to produce such information and reports as the Committee may deem appropriate in order for it to fulfill its duties.
- 3.4. The Chair shall report to the Board on the Committee's activities since the last Board meeting. However, the Chair may report orally to the Board on any matter in his or her view requiring the immediate attention of the Board. Minutes of each meeting of the Committee shall be circulated to the Directors following approval of the minutes by the Members. The Committee shall oversee the preparation of, review and approve the applicable disclosure for inclusion in the Company's annual information form.

Secretary and Minutes

3.5. The secretary of the Company may act as secretary of the Committee unless an alternative secretary is appointed by the Committee. The secretary of the Committee shall keep regular minutes of Committee proceedings and shall circulate such minutes to all Members and to the chair of the Board (and to any other Director that requests that they be sent to him or her) on a timely basis.

Quorum and Procedure

3.6. A quorum for any meeting of the Committee will be a simple majority. The procedure at meetings will be determined by the Committee. The powers of the Committee may be exercised at a meeting where a quorum is present or by resolution in writing signed by all Members. In the absence of the Chair, the Committee may appoint one of its other Members to act as Chair of any meeting.

Exercise of Power between Meetings

3.7. Between meetings, the Chair, or any Member designated for such purpose by the Committee, may, if required in the circumstance, exercise any power delegated by the Committee on an interim basis. The Chair or other designated Member will promptly report to the other Members in any case in which this interim power is exercised.

4. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

4.1. The Committee is responsible for performing the duties set out below and any other duties that may be assigned to it by the Board as well as any other functions that may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.

a) Financial Reporting and Disclosure

- (i) Review and recommend to the Board for approval, the audited annual financial statements, including the auditors' report thereon, the quarterly financial statements, annual and interim management discussion and analysis, financial reports, earnings releases, and other applicable financial disclosure, prior to the public disclosure of such information.
- (ii) Review and recommend to the Board for approval, where appropriate, financial information contained in any prospectuses, annual information forms, annual reports to shareholders, management proxy circulars, material change disclosures of a financial nature and similar disclosure documents prior to the public disclosure of such documents or information.
- (iii) Review with senior executives of the Company, and with external auditors, significant accounting principles and disclosure issues and alternative treatments under International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), with a view to gaining reasonable assurance that financial statements are accurate, complete and present fairly the Company's financial position and the results of its operations in accordance with IFRS, as applicable.
- (iv) Seek to ensure that adequate procedures are in place for the review of the Company's public disclosure of financial information extracted or derived from the Company's financial statements, the Company's disclosure controls and procedures and periodically assess the adequacy of those procedures and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for consideration.

b) Internal Controls and Internal Audit

(i) Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal control and management information systems through discussions with senior executives of the Company and the external auditor relating to the maintenance of: (i) necessary books, records and accounts in sufficient detail to accurately and fairly reflect the Company's transactions; (ii) effective internal control over financial reporting; and (iii) adequate processes for assessing the risk of material misstatements in the financial statements and for detecting control weaknesses or fraud. From time to time the Committee shall assess any requirements or changes with respect to the establishment or

- operations of the internal audit function having regard to the size and stage of development of the Company at any particular time.
- (ii) Satisfy itself, through discussions with senior executives of the Company that the adequacy of internal controls, systems and procedures has been periodically assessed in accordance with regulatory requirements and recommendations.
- (iii) Review and discuss the Company's major financial risk exposures and the steps taken to monitor and control such exposures, including the use of any financial derivatives and hedging activities.
- (iv) Review and make recommendations to the Board regarding, the adequacy of the Company's risk management policies and procedures with regard to identification of the Company's principal risks and implementation of appropriate systems and controls to manage such risks including an assessment of the adequacy of insurance coverage maintained by the Company.
- (v) Periodically review the Company's policies and procedures for reviewing and approving or ratifying related- party transactions.

c) External Audit

- (i) Recommend to the Board a firm of external auditors to be nominated for appointment as the external auditor of the Company.
- (ii) Ensure the external auditors report directly to the Committee on a regular basis.
- (iii) Review the independence of the external auditors.
- (iv) Review and recommend to the Board the fee, scope and timing of the audit and other related services rendered by the external auditors.
- (v) Review the audit plan of the external auditors prior to the commencement of any audit. Establish and maintain a direct line of communication with the Company's external auditors.
- (vi) Meet in camera with only the auditors, senior executives of the Company, or the Members, where and to the extent that, such parties are present, at any meeting of the Committee.
- (vii) Oversee the work of the external auditors of the Company with respect to preparing and issuing an audit report or performing other audit or review services for the Company, including the resolution of issues between senior executives of the Company and the external auditors.
- (viii) Review the results of the external audit and the external auditor's report thereon, including discussions with the external auditors as to the quality of accounting principles used and any alternative treatments of financial information that have been discussed with senior executives of the Company and any other matters.
- (ix) Review any material written communications between senior executives of the Company and the external auditors and any significant disagreements between the senior executives and the external auditors.
- (x) Discuss with the external auditors their perception of the Company's financial and accounting personnel, records and systems, the cooperation which the external auditors received during their course of their review and availability of records, data and other requested information and any recommendations with respect thereto.

- (xi) Discuss with the external auditors their perception of the Company's identification and management of risks, including the adequacy or effectiveness of policies and procedures implemented to mitigate such risks.
- (xii) Review the reasons for any proposed change in the external auditors which is not initiated by the Committee or Board and any other significant issues related to the change, including the response of the incumbent auditors, and enquire as to the qualifications of the proposed auditors before making its recommendations to the Board.
- (xiii) Review annually a report from the external auditors in respect of their internal quality-control procedures, any material issues raised by the most recent internal quality-control review, or peer review of the external auditors, or by any inquiry or investigation by governmental or professional authorities, within the preceding five years, respecting one or more independent audits carried out by the external auditors, and any steps taken to address any such issues.

d) Associated Responsibilities

- (i) Monitor and periodically review the Whistleblower Policy of the Company and associated procedures for:
 - the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters;
 - the confidential, anonymous submission by directors, officers and employees of the Company of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters; and
 - if applicable, any violations of applicable law, rules or regulations that relates to corporate reporting and disclosure, or violations of the Company's Code of Ethics.
- (ii) Review and approve the Company's hiring policies regarding employees and partners, and former employees and partners, of the present and former external auditors of the Company.

e) Non-Audit Services

(i) Pre-approve all non-audit services to be provided to the Company or any subsidiary entities by its external auditors or by the external auditors of such subsidiary entities. The Committee may delegate to one or more of its Members the authority to pre-approve non-audit services but pre-approval by such Member or Members so delegated shall be presented to the full Committee at its first scheduled meeting following such pre-approval.

f) Other Duties

(i) Direct and supervise the investigation into any matter brought to its attention within the scope of the Committee's duties. Perform such other duties as may be assigned to it by the Board from time to time or as may be required by applicable law.

5. THE COMMITTEE CHAIR

5.1. In addition to the responsibilities of the Chair described above, the Chair has the primary responsibility for overseeing and reporting on the evaluations to be conducted by the Committee, as well as monitoring developments with respect to accounting and auditing matters in general and reporting to the Committee on any related significant developments.

6. COMMITTEE EVALUATION

6.1. The performance of the Committee shall be evaluated by the Board as part of its regular evaluation of the Board committees.

7. ACCESS TO INFORMATION AND AUTHORITY TO RETAIN INDEPENDENT ADVISORS

- 7.1. The Committee shall be granted unrestricted access to all information regarding the Company that is necessary or desirable to fulfill its duties and all directors of the Company, officers and employees will be directed to cooperate as requested by Members. The Committee has the authority to retain, at the Company's expense, independent legal, financial, and other advisors, consultants and experts to assist the Committee in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities, including sole authority to retain and to approve their fees. The Committee shall select such advisors, consultants and experts after taking into consideration factors relevant to their independence from management and other relevant considerations.
- 7.2. The Committee shall discharge its responsibilities, and shall assess the information provided by the Company's management and the external advisers, in accordance with its business judgment. Members are entitled to rely, absent knowledge to the contrary, on the integrity of the persons and organizations from whom they receive information, and on the accuracy and completeness of the information provided. Nothing in this Charter is intended or may be construed as imposing on any member of the Committee or the Board a standard of care or diligence that is in any way more onerous or extensive than the standard to which the directors are subject under applicable law.
- 7.3. The Committee also has the authority to communicate directly with internal and external auditors. While the Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in this Charter, it is not the duty of the Committee to plan or conduct audits or to determine that the Company's financial statements are complete and accurate or comply with IFRS and other applicable requirements. These are the responsibilities of the senior executives of the Company responsible for such matters and the external auditors. The Committee, the Chair and any Members identified as having accounting or related financial expertise are members of the Board, appointed to the Committee to provide broad oversight of the financial, risk and control related activities of the Company, and are specifically not accountable or responsible for the day to day operation or performance of such activities. Although the designation of a Member as having accounting or related financial expertise for disclosure purposes is based on that individual's education and experience, which that individual will bring to bear in carrying out his or her duties on the Committee, such designation does not impose on such person any duties, obligations or liability that are greater than the duties, obligations and liability imposed on such person as a member of the Committee and Board in the absence of such designation. Rather, the role of a Member who is identified as having accounting or related financial expertise, like the role of all Members, is to oversee the process, not to certify or guarantee the internal or external audit of the Company's financial information or public disclosure. This Charter is not intended to change or interpret the constating documents of the Company or applicable law or stock exchange rule to which the Company is subject, and this Charter should be interpreted in a manner consistent with all such applicable laws and rules.
- 7.4. The Board may, from time to time, permit departures from the terms of this Charter, either prospectively or retrospectively. This Charter is not intended to give rise to civil liability on the part of the Company or its Directors or officers to shareholders, security holders, customers, suppliers, partners, competitors, employees or other persons, or to any other liability whatsoever on their part.

8. REVIEW OF CHARTER

8.1. The Committee shall periodically review and assess the adequacy of this Charter and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for consideration.

Dated: January 30, 2019

Approved by: Board of Directors of the Company